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DEPARTMENT OF ENVIRONMENT AND NATURAL RESOURCES 

KAGAWARAN NG KAPALIGIRAN AT LIKAS NA YAMAN 
 
 

 
 
 

Supplemental/Bid Bulletin No. 1 
 

PROCUREMENT OF MANAGED SERVICES FOR THE ESTABLISHMENT OF A 
BUSINESS CONTINUITY AND DISASTER RECOVERY (BCDR) SITE INFORMATION 

TECHNOLOGY (IT) INFRASTRUCTURE FOR THE DEPARTMENT OF 
ENVIRONMENT AND NATURAL RESOURCES (DENR) 

Bid Ref. No. DENR-CO-2024-032 
 

Approved Budget for the Contract:  P13,900,000.00 
 

This Supplemental/Bid Bulletin No. 1 is being issued to respond to clarifications/requests 
sent via email and raised by prospective bidders during the Pre-Bid Conference held on 05 
September 2024 online via Google Meet Platform and to revise provisions/specifications in 
the Bidding Documents for the above cited project: 
 
 

A. Response to clarifications/requests of prospective bidders: 

CLARIFICATION/REQUEST RESPONSE 

Network Switch (Core) 
Modular uplink (10G) 
 
-Could you please clarify if this refers to 10G 
fiber or copper? 

Specification is being updated to “Modular uplink 
(10G) Fiber Optic” 
 
[See attached Terms of Reference (TOR) as of 11 
September 2024.] 

Network Switch (Core) 
10 GE Network Module (8 slots) 
 
-Could you please confirm if this refers to a 
transceiver? If so, is it 10G MMF or SMF? 
Additionally, do we need to populate all 8 slots 
for the transceivers? 
 
-If it’s not a transceiver, are you referring to the 
modular uplink with 8 slots? 

Specification is being updated to “10 GE Network 
Module (4 slots) w/ 4 x 10G MMF Transceivers”, 
stating the inclusion of transceivers. 
 
(See attached TOR as of 11 September 2024.) 

Network Switch (Access) 
 
-Is a transceiver needed? If so, could you 
please provide the type, speed, and mode of 
the transceiver (e.g., 10G MMF)? 

Specification is being updated to “4x1G fixed uplink 
Fiber Optic w/ 4 x 1G MMF transceivers”, stating 
the inclusion of transceivers. 
 
(See attached TOR as of 11 September 2024.) 

BIDS AND AWARDS COMMITTEE 
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CLARIFICATION/REQUEST RESPONSE 

Wireless LAN Controller 
Fixed Uplink: 2 x 10G 
 
-Could you please confirm if the required Fixed 
Uplink (2 x 10G) is copper or fiber? 
 
-Is a transceiver needed? If so, could you 
please provide the type, speed, and mode of 
the transceiver (e.g., 10G MMF)? 

Specification is being updated to “Fixed Uplink: 2 x 
10G Fiber Optic w/ 2x 10G MMF Transceivers (if 
applicable)” 
 
(See attached TOR as of 11 September 2024.) 

Wireless LAN Controller 
License for 20 APs (Minimum) 
 
-Could you please specify which license is 
needed for this? 
 
-If the controller is capable of managing the 
access points without requiring an additional 
license, should we consider omitting the license 
requirement from Technical specification? 
 
-If so, we humbly ask to change the requirement 
from “License for 20 APs (Minimum)” to 
“License for 20 APs (Minimum) if applicable” 

Specification is being updated to “License for 20 APs 
(Minimum) (if applicable)” 
 
(See attached TOR as of 11 September 2024.) 

How many years of support are provided: 1, 3, 
or 5 years? 

Please see the attached TOR as of 11 September 
2024 - Maintenance and Support Services, with 
statement: 
 
“The service provider shall submit a Proof of 
Maintenance and Support, for the maintenance and 
support services, valid for one (1) year after the 
project implementation sign-off.” 

Micro Datacenter 
 
-Where is the electrical tapping point? 
 
 
-Is there enough electrical tapping point for the 
micro data center? 
 
-Who will provide electrical feeder line, and 
breakers as it is not mentioned on the TOR? 
 
-What is the required warranty for micro data 
center and ups? 

 

-Electrical tapping was discussed during ocular 
inspection & floor map. 
 
-Also, there is enough electrical tapping point for 
Microdata Center as per NGAC inspection. 
 
-Feeder line and breaker will be included in the 
deliverables. 
 
-One (1) warranty. 
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CLARIFICATION/REQUEST RESPONSE 

Firewall Dual Power Supply 
 
-Is the dual power supply required to be built in 
or we can offer a modular power supply? 

Specification is being updated to “Dual/Modular 
Power Supply” 
 
(See attached TOR as of 11 September 2024.) 

Must be compatible with the existing firewall 
of DENR. 
 
-Compatible in what context? For high 
availability? For Site to Site VPN? 

Specification is being updated to  “Must be compatible 
with existing NGFW of DENR Collocation Service on 
Site-to-site VPN” 
 
(See attached TOR as of 11 September 2024.) 

B. Revisions to provisions/specifications in the Bidding Documents: 

FROM TO 

Similar project shall mean “Network and Data 
Center Managed Services.” 

Similar project shall mean “Network and/or Data 
Center Services.” 

SECTION III. BID DATA SHEET 

 

20.2 

1.d)  Audited Financial Statements (AFS) for CY 2023 
received (with stamped receipt or with attached 
copy of acknowledgment thru email) by the 
Bureau of Internal Revenue (BIR) or its duly 
accredited and authorized institutions dated CY 
2024;  

 

 

20.2 

1.d)  Audited Financial Statements (AFS) for CY 2023 
received (with stamped receipt or with attached 
copy of acknowledgment thru email) by the 
Bureau of Internal Revenue (BIR) or its duly 
accredited and authorized institutions dated CY 
2024;  

 

Note: For corporations filing Audited Financial 
Statement (AFS) on a fiscal year, must 
attach copies of the following 
documents: 

i. Application for Registration (BIR 

Form No. 1903) with a stamp of 

receipt by the Bureau of Internal 

Revenue (BIR) or its duly 

accredited and authorized 

institutions; and 

ii. Latest AFS (with a stamp of receipt 

or with attached copy of 

acknowledgment thru email) by the 

BIR or its duly accredited and 

authorized institutions.  
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FROM TO 

 

20.2 

2.c) List of names of the following personnel who are 
currently employed by the service provider, with 
attached copies of documentary requirements 
detailed below: 

Key 
Personnel 

Required 
Number of 
Years of 

Employment 
in the Service 

Provider’s 
Company 

Documentary 
Requirements 

Project Management Team 

One (1) Head 
Project 
Manager 

Two (2) Years 

 Curriculum Vitae. 

 Company-issued ID. 

 Certificate of Employment 
issued by the service 
provider’s HR Department. 

 Proof of SSS Premium 
Remittances for the past two 
(2) years. 

 Valid Certification in its field of 
expertise. 

 List of completed/ongoing 
projects relative to project 
management, from year 2019 
to 2024 [at least one (1) 
project per year] with attached 
copies of contracts, to show 
five (5) continuous years of 
experience in project 
management. 

One (1) 
Assistant 
Project 
Manager 

Two (2) Years 

 Curriculum Vitae. 

 Company-issued ID. 

 Certificate of Employment 
issued by the service 
provider’s HR Department. 

 Proof of SSS Premium 
Remittances for the past two 
(2) years. 

 Valid Certification in its field 
of expertise. 

Other Personnel 

One (1) 
Certified 
Network 
Security 
Engineer, or 
Firewall 
Architect, or 
equivalent, for 
the 
brand/solutions 
being offered 

Two (2) Years 

 Curriculum Vitae. 

 Company-issued ID. 

 Certificate of Employment 
issued by the service 
provider’s HR Department. 

 Proof of SSS Premium 
Remittances for the past two 
(2) years. 

 Valid Certification in its field 
of expertise. 

One (1) 
Certified Data 
Centre 
Professional 
(CDCP) and/or 
One (1) 
Certified Data 
Centre 
Specialist 
(CDCS) 

Two (2) Years 

 Curriculum Vitae. 

 Company-issued ID. 

 Certificate of Employment 
issued by the service 
provider’s HR Department. 

 Proof of SSS Premium 
Remittances for the past two 
(2) years. 

 Valid Certification in its field 
of expertise. 

 List of completed/ongoing 
projects relative to project 
management, from year 2021 
to 2024 [at least one (1) 
project per year] with 
attached copies of contracts, 
to show three (3) continuous 
years of experience in the 
field of expertise. 

 

 

 

20.2 

2.c) List of names of the following personnel who are 
currently employed by the service provider, with 
attached copies of documentary requirements 
detailed below: 

Key 
Personnel 

Required 
Number of 
Years of 

Employment 
in the Service 

Provider’s 
Company 

Documentary 
Requirements 

Project Management Team 

One (1) Head 
Project 
Manager 

Two (2) Years 

 Curriculum Vitae. 

 Company-issued ID. 

 Certificate of Employment 
issued by the service 
provider’s HR Department. 

 Proof of SSS Premium 
Remittances for the past two 
(2) years. 

 Valid Certification in its field of 
expertise. 

 Copies of at least two (2) 
completed contracts dated 
2019 or earlier as proof of 
five (5) years of experience 
in project management. 

One (1) 
Assistant 
Project 
Manager 

Two (2) Years 

 Curriculum Vitae. 

 Company-issued ID. 

 Certificate of Employment 
issued by the service 
provider’s HR Department. 

 Proof of SSS Premium 
Remittances for the past two 
(2) years. 

 Valid Certification in its field 
of expertise. 

Other Personnel 

One (1) 
Certified 
Network 
Security 
Engineer, or 
Firewall 
Architect, or 
equivalent, for 
the 
brand/solutions 
being offered 

Two (2) Years 

 Curriculum Vitae. 

 Company-issued ID. 

 Certificate of Employment 
issued by the service 
provider’s HR Department. 

 Proof of SSS Premium 
Remittances for the past two 
(2) years. 

 Valid Certification in its field 
of expertise. 

One (1) 
Certified Data 
Centre 
Professional 
(CDCP) and/or 
One (1) 
Certified Data 
Centre 
Specialist 
(CDCS) 

Two (2) Years 

 Curriculum Vitae. 

 Company-issued ID. 

 Certificate of Employment 
issued by the service 
provider’s HR Department. 

 Proof of SSS Premium 
Remittances for the past two 
(2) years. 

 Valid Certification in its field 
of expertise. 

 Copies of at least two (2) 
completed contracts dated 
2021 or earlier as proof of 
three (3) years of 
experience as CDCP and/or 
CDCS. 
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FROM TO 

SECTION VI. SCHEDULE OF REQUIREMENTS 

Section VI. Schedule of Requirements 
(Terms of Reference as of 31 July 2024) 

Revised Section VI. Schedule of Requirements 
(Terms of Reference as of 11 September 2024) 

SECTION VII. TECHNICAL SPECIFICATIONS 

Section VII. Technical Specifications Revised Section VII. Technical Specifications 

 
Bidders are advised to use the following forms and submit together with all the other required 
documents for the submission of bids on 20 September 2024 (Friday), 9:30 AM: 

1. Revised Section VI. Schedule of Requirements (Terms of Reference as of 11 
September 2024) 

2. Revised Section VII. Technical Specifications 
 
Also, please use the Revised Checklist of Technical and Financial Documents as a 
guide/reference. 
 
This Supplemental/Bid Bulletin No. 1 shall form part of the Bidding Documents. Any provisions 
in the Bidding Documents inconsistent herewith is hereby amended, modified and superseded 
accordingly. 
 
For guidance and information of all concerned. 

 
 
Issued this 13th of September 2024 in Quezon City. 
 
 
 
Approved by:  
 
 

 

 
  

(sgd.)  
NORLITO A. ENERAN, LL. M., CESO III 
Assistant Secretary for Legal Affairs and Enforcement & 
Vice Chairperson, Bids and Awards Committee 
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PLEASE USE THIS BID FORM. DO NOT RETYPE OR ALTER. 

(page 1 of 11) 
 

Revised Section VI. Schedule of Requirements 

Instruction to Bidders: Please fill up the form accordingly and sign the Bidder’s 
Undertaking. Failure to conform will result in a rating of “FAILED”. 

 

   

A. TERMS OF REFERENCE AS OF 11 September 2024 
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1. Bidder has no overdue deliveries or unperformed services intended for DENR. 
2. Bidder did not participate as a consultant in the preparation of the design or 

technical specification of the GOODS/SERVICES subject of the bid. 
 
 

BIDDER’S UNDERTAKING 

I/We, the undersigned bidder, having examined the Bidding Documents including Bid Bulletins, 
as applicable, hereby BID to (supply/deliver/perform/comply) the above Terms of Reference 

 

I/We undertake, if our bid is accepted, to deliver the goods/services in accordance with the terms 
and conditions contained in the bid documents, including the posting of the required performance 

security within ten (10) calendar days from receipt of the Notice of Award. 
 

Until a formal contract/order confirmation is prepared and signed, this Bid is binding on us. 

____________________________________________________________ 
Name of Company (in print) 

___________________________________ 
Signature of Authorized Representative 

_________________________________________ 
Name of Authorized Representative (in print) 

_________________________________________ 
Designation (in print) 

_______________ 
Date 

 

 

 

 

  

B. OTHER REQUIREMENTS 
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Revised Section VII. Technical Specifications 
 

Instruction to Bidders: Please fill up the form accordingly and sign the Bidder’s 
Undertaking. Failure to conform will result in a rating of 
“FAILED”. 

Minimum Technical Requirements Unless Otherwise Specified 
*Bidder’s 

Statement of 
Compliance 

 
Micro/Mini Datacenter (Integrated Solutions) 

● 1x Rack System and Accessories: H:42U W:600mm, D:1100mm (min) - 
1400mm (max), Electronic Locks,   

● 1x PACU: 3.5KW Mounted on Top, Side (In Row), or Inside of the Rack 
● 1x UPS: Remote monitoring, 6KVA, 15 minutes at Full Load 
● 1x Rack/Cabinet Mount Fire Suppression: Remote monitoring, Zero ozone 

depletion potential, and less than 1 global warming potential (GWP) 
● 1x PDU: Remote monitoring, 16A, 230V, C13 and C19 Outlet 

 

Next Generation Firewall   
● Rack-mountable 
● DNS Security, URL Filtering and Advanced Threat Prevention (1-year 

subscription) 
● Firewall throughput (18 Gbps) 
● Threat Prevention throughput (9 Gbps) 
● IPsec VPN throughput (9 Gbps) 
● Dual/Modular Power Supply 
● Software Define Wide Area Network (SD-WAN) 3. 
● Cloud-based management 3. 
● Must be compatible with existing NGFW of DENR Collocation Service on 

Site-to-site VPN 

 

Network Switch (Core)   
● Rack-mountable 
● Layers 2 and 3 
● Gigabit RJ45 Ethernet (24 Ports)   
● Modular uplink (10G) Fiber Optic 
● 10 GE Network Module (4 slots) w/ 4 x 10G MMF Transceivers 
● Dual Power Supply 
● Stackable 

 

Network Switch (Access)   
● Rack-mountable 
● 24 x Gigabit RJ45 Ethernet Ports (PoE/PoE+) 
● 4x1G fixed uplink Fiber Optic w/ 4 x 1G MMF transceivers 
● Stackable 
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Minimum Technical Requirements Unless Otherwise Specified 
*Bidder’s 

Statement of 
Compliance 

 
Wireless LAN Controller 

● Maximum number of access points: 250 
● Maximum number of clients: 5000 
● Maximum throughput: 5Gbps 
● Maximum WLANs / VLANs: 4096 
● Fixed Uplink: 2 x 10G Fiber Optic w/ 2x 10G MMF Transceivers (if applicable) 
● Form Factor: 1RU 
● License for 20 APs (Minimum) (if applicable) 

 
Wireless Access Point  

● Compatible with Wireless LAN Controller 
● Wi-Fi 6 (802.11ax) 
● Multi User, Multiple Input, Multiple Output (MU-MIMO) 
● Uplink/downlink Orthogonal Frequency-Division Multiple Access (OFDMA) – 

Improve Latency 
● Dual 5-GHz radio support 

 
Others  Accessories 
● KVM: TFT LCD, 8 ports, On-screen Display (USB cable/adapter must be included) 

 

 

 

 

 

PLEASE SPECIFY THE BRAND AND MODEL NO. BEING OFFERED FOR THE 
FOLLOWING ITEMS: 

 
1. Micro/Mini Datacenter (Integrated Solutions) :  

2. Next Generation Firewall :  

3. Network Switch (Core) :  

4. Network Switch (Access) :  

5. Wireless LAN Controller :  

6. Wireless Access Point :  
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I hereby certify to comply with the above Technical Specifications. 

____________________________________________________________ 
Name of Company (in print) 

___________________________________ 
Signature of Authorized Representative 

_________________________________________ 
Name of Authorized Representative (in print) 

_________________________________________ 
Designation (in print) 

_______________ 
Date 
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DENR BIDS AND AWARDS COMMITTEE 
REVISED CHECKLIST OF TECHNICAL AND FINANCIAL DOCUMENTS 

Project: PROCUREMENT OF MANAGED SERVICES FOR THE ESTABLISHMENT OF A 
BUSINESS CONTINUITY AND DISASTER RECOVERY (BCDR) SITE 
INFORMATION TECHNOLOGY (IT) INFRASTRUCTURE FOR THE DEPARTMENT 
OF ENVIRONMENT AND NATURAL RESOURCES (DENR) 

Bid Ref. No. Bid Ref. No. DENR-CO-2024-032 

APPROVED BUDGET FOR THE CONTRACT:  P13,900,000.00 

ENVELOPE 1: TECHNICAL COMPONENT  

CLASS "A" DOCUMENTS 

A. LEGAL DOCUMENTS  

 

(a) Valid and current Certificate of PhilGEPS Registration (Platinum Membership) (all pages) in 
accordance with Section 8.5.2 of the IRR (pursuant to GPPB Resolution No. 15-2021, dated 
14 October 2021); 
 
Note: For corporations filing Audited Financial Statement (AFS) on a fiscal year, must attach 
copies of the following documents: 

i. Application for Registration (BIR Form No. 1903) with a stamp of receipt by the 
Bureau of Internal Revenue (BIR) or its duly accredited and authorized institutions; 
and 

ii. Latest AFS (with a stamp of receipt or with attached copy of acknowledgment thru 
email) by the BIR or its duly accredited and authorized institutions. 

B. TECHNICAL DOCUMENTS 

 
(b) Statement of all its ongoing government and private contracts, including contracts awarded but not 

yet started, if any, whether similar or not similar in nature and complexity to the contract to be bid 

(per Annex I); 

 

(c) Statement of the Bidder’s Single Largest Completed Contract (SLCC) of similar nature within the 
last five (5) years from date of submission and receipt of bids  equivalent to at least fifty (50%) of 
the total  ABC (per Annex I-A) 
 

Similar in nature shall mean “Network and/or Data Center Services.” 
 

Any of the following documents must be submitted/attached corresponding to listed completed 
largest contracts per Annex I-A: 
 

i) Copy of End User’s Acceptance; or 

ii) Copy of Official Receipt/s or Sales Invoice or Collection Receipt/s 

 

(d) Original Bid Security must be issued in favor of the DEPARTMENT OF ENVIRONMENT AND 

NATURAL RESOURCES (DENR) (must be valid for at least 120 calendar days from the date of 

bid opening); any one of the following forms: 

Project ABC 
(P) 

Bid Security: Cash, Cashier’s/ 
Manager’s Check, Bank Draft / 

Guarantee, Irrevocable Letter of 
Credit (2%) (P) 

Bid Security:  
Surety Bond (5%) 

(P) 

Original Bid Securing 
Declaration 

13,900,000.00 278,000.00 695,000.00 
No required 

Amount 
 

1. Bid Securing Declaration per Annex II; 
2. The Cashier’s/Manager’s Check shall be issued by a Local, Universal or Commercial Bank 
3. The Bank Draft/Guarantee or Irrevocable Letter of Credit shall be issued by a Local 

Universal or Commercial Bank; or 
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 

 

4. Should bidder opt to submit a Surety Bond as Bid Security, the surety bond must be callable 
on demand and must be issued by a surety or insurance company duly certified by the 
Insurance Commission as authorized to issue such bond. Together with the surety bond, a 
certification from Insurance Commission must be submitted by the bidder which must state 
that the surety or insurance company is specifically authorized to issue surety bonds. 

5. For submission of Bank Draft/Guarantee or Irrevocable Letter of Credit or Surety Bond, the 
following must be stated/specified in the Bid Security pursuant to  Section III, ITB Clause 
18.5, to wit: 

 
The following are the grounds for forfeiture of Bid Security 

 IF A BIDDER: 
a) Withdraws its bid during the period of bid validity.  
b) Does not accept the correction of errors pursuant to Section 32.2.1 of the IRR of RA 

9184.  
c) Fails to submit the Post Qualification requirements within the prescribed period or a 

finding against their veracity thereof.  
d) Submission of eligibility requirements containing false information or falsified 

documents. 
e) Submission of bids that contain false information or falsified documents, or the 

concealment of such information in the bids in order to influence the outcome of 
eligibility screening or any other stage of the public bidding. 

f) Allowing the use of one’s name, or using the name of another for purposes of public 
bidding. 

g) Withdrawal of a bid, or refusal to accept an award, or enter into contract with the 
Government without justifiable cause, after the Bidder had been adjudged as having 
submitted the Lowest Calculated and Responsive Bid.  

h) Refusal or failure to post the required performance security within the prescribed time. 
i) Refusal to clarify or validate in writing its bid during post-qualification within a period of 

seven (7) calendar days from receipt of the request for clarification. 
j) Any documented unsolicited attempt by a bidder to unduly influence the outcome of 

the bidding in his favor. 
k) Failure of the potential joint venture partners to enter into the joint venture after the bid 

is declared as successful. 
l) All other acts that tend to defeat the purpose of the competitive bidding, such as 

habitually withdrawing from bidding, submitting late Bids or patently insufficient bid, for 
at least three (3) times within a year, except for valid reasons. 

 IF THE SUCCESSFUL BIDDER: 

a) fails to sign the contract in accordance with Section 40 of the Revised IRR of RA 9184; 
or 

b) fails to furnish performance security in accordance with Section 40 of the Revised IRR 
of RA 9184. 

 

 

(e) Conformity with Revised Section VI. Schedule of Requirements (Terms of Reference 
as of 11 September 2024) (all pages) and Revised Section VII. Technical 
Specifications (all pages), as enumerated and specified in the Supplemental/Bid 
Bulletin No. 1. 

 

(f) Original duly signed Omnibus Sworn Statement in accordance with Section 25.3 of the IRR of RA 

9184 and using the prescribed form attached as Annex III with attached Proof of Authority of the 

bidder’s authorized representative/s: 
 

i. FOR SOLE PROPRIETORSHIP (IF OWNER OPTS TO APPOINT A REPRESENTATIVE): 

Notarized Special Power of Attorney. 

ii. FOR CORPORATIONS, COOPERATIVE OR THE MEMBERS OF THE JOINT VENTURE: 

Notarized Secretary’s Certificate evidencing the authority of the designated representative/s. 

Note: Should there be more than one (1) appointed authorized representatives, use the 

word “any of the following” or “OR”, otherwise, all authorized representatives 

must sign/initial the bid submission 

IN THE CASE OF UNINCORPORATED JOINT VENTURE: Each member shall submit a separate 

Special Power of Attorney and/or Secretary’s Certificate evidencing the authority of the designated 

representative/s. 
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C. FINANCIAL DOCUMENTS 

 

(g) Net Financial Contracting Capacity (NFCC) computation, in accordance with ITB Clause 5.5, (per 

Annex IV). 
 

The NFCC computation must at least be equal to the ABC of this project.  The detailed computation 
using the required formula must be provided. 

 

OR 
 

Original copy of Committed Line of Credit (CLC) per Annex IV-A issued by a Local Universal or 
Local Commercial Bank at least equal to ten percent (10%) of the ABC of this project. 
 

In case of Joint Venture, the partner responsible to submit the NFCC shall likewise submit 
the Statement of all its ongoing contracts and the Latest Audited Financial Statements. 

Class “B” Document: (For Joint Venture) 

 

If applicable, For Joint Ventures,  Bidder to submit either: 

(i) Copy of the JOINT VENTURE AGREEMENT (JVA)  in case the joint venture is already in 
existence, or  

(ii) Copy of Protocol/Undertaking of Agreement to Enter into Joint Venture (Annex V) signed 
by all the potential joint venture partners stating that they will enter into and abide by the 
provisions of the JVA in the instance that the bid is successful and must be in accordance 
with Section 23.1 (b) of the IRR 

In case the joint venture is not yet in existence, the submission of a valid JVA shall be within 
ten (10) calendar days from receipt of the Notice of Award. [Sec 37.1.4 (a) (i)] 
 

(h) The JVA or the Protocol/Undertaking of Agreement to Enter into Joint Venture (per Annex V) 

must include/specify the company/partner and the name of the office designated as 

authorized representative of the Joint Venture. 

ENVELOPE 2: FINANCIAL COMPONENT 

 

(a) Completed and signed Financial Bid Form.  Bidder must use, accomplish and submit Bid 
Form (Annex VI); and 

 
(b) Original of duly signed and accomplished Price Schedule(s) (Annex VI-A or VI-B). 

 
The ABC is inclusive of VAT. Any proposal with a financial component exceeding the ABC 
shall not be accepted. 

 


